Not approved until next meeting
 LIBERTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

May 14, 2019	Meeting Summary	7:00 p.m.

I.	Call to Order 

The Liberty Planning and Zoning Commission met on Tuesday, May 14, 2019, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 101 East Kansas Street. A quorum being present, Chairman Rosekrans called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

II.	Roll Call

Commission members in attendance were: Rick Boswell, Judy Dilts, Patricia Evans, Walt Holt, Amy Howard, Ken Personett, Tom Reinier, and Dee Rosekrans.  Ann Waterman was absent.  Representing staff were Katherine Sharp, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Peterman, City Planner; Ben McCabe, Assistant Director of Public Works; and Karan Johnson, Economic & Business Development Manager.  4 members of the public were in attendance.

III.	 Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Rosekrans asked if there were any questions or comments related to the minutes from the April meeting, seeing none he asked for a motion.
 
Commissioner Dilts moved to approve the regular session minutes from the April 9, 2019 meeting and Commissioner Evans seconded the motion. The minutes were approved 8-0-0. 

IV.	19-03R&PDP:  Rezoning & Preliminary Development Plan for a rezoning to PD for commercial parking at 8301 NE 69 Hwy. [Public Hearing]

Ms. Sharp presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Boswell asked if any lighting was proposed for the sight.

Mr. Peterman stated that no lighting was proposed and that the applicant can elaborate on whether any may be desired in the future.

Commissioner Personett asked if there would be an impact from increased traffic.

Mr. Peterman stated that traffic review was not required as part of this application and the applicant can elaborate on the subject of traffic.

Luke Demaree, from Kessinger Law Firm, 200 NW Englewood, Kansas City, MO is representing the applicant.

Mr. Demaree stated that the bank owned the property and is trying to sell it.  They have cleaned up the site from the previous use.  The Bank had a buyer but there were concerns with bringing the utilities to the property and they lost that buyer.  Mr. Demaree stated that no lighting is proposed for the site.  The plan is to lease the site to a local business.  It would be private overnight parking and not open to the public.  Mr. Demaree also stated that the proposed user would be local businesses that already produce local traffic and that no extra traffic would be generated.  The intent is to lease to a local user and that would relieve some of the pressure of parking vehicles in neighborhoods and/or on site disrupting business operations.

Chairman Rosekrans asked if it would be free parking.

Mr. Demaree stated that it would be leased to a private user and the lessee would regulate who parked there.  It is not intended to be a free public lot.

Chairman Rosekrans opened the Public Hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak, seeing none he closed the public hearing.  

Commissioner Boswell stated that he had concerns regarding security without lighting and would not vote in favor.

Commissioner Dilts concurred with Commissioner Boswell.

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Personett moved to approve the case with the stipulation noted in the staff report.   Commissioner Howard seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 5-3-0
Yes: Evans, Holt, Personett, Rosekrans, and Reinier 
No:  Boswell, Dilts, and Howard
Abstain: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Tuesday, May 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

V.	19-10FDP:  Final Development Plan for new 2945 sf  building replacing an old building at 1132 W Kansas with Associated Variance for parking. [Public Hearing]

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Holt asked why the applicant is requesting more parking.

Mr. Peterman stated that based on the user, a dentist office, and their experience shows that with staff and patient turnaround that the number of stalls they are requesting is warranted.  The UDO only allows 150% of what is allowed.

Commissioner Holt asked about the landscaping plan.

Mr. Peterman stated the increase in green space and the added landscaping while, not required with this redevelopment application, do meet standards for this size of building.

Commissioner Personett asked if the agreement for landscaping lasts forever.

Mr. Peterman stated that it appears that the agreement is intended to be permanent.

Commissioner Personett asked if the parking lot was also grandfathered.

Mr. Peterman stated that the existing pavement is, but the number of parking stalls are being increased with this application, which triggers the request for the parking variance.

Commissioner Dilts asked if the landscaping agreement had been signed and presented to staff.

Mr. Peterman said that the agreement has been submitted to staff for review.  The signed and executed agreement is required before final approval by the City Council.

Ms. Sharp stated that the landscaping agreement was presented by the applicant in an effort to add landscaping to an already developed site.

Commissioner Dilts asked if the added greenspace will aid with storm drainage.

Mr. McCabe stated that added green space will help with stormwater.  The site is being evaluated by the applicant engineers and Public Works staff to find the best ways to address the current stormwater needs.

Robert De La Fuente, Star Development, 244 W. Mill St, Liberty, MO. Representing the applicant said he was available for questions.

Commissioner Dilts asked if the elevations were the final design of the building. She also asked if the building would match the surrounding office buildings or would it look out of place.

Mr. De la Fuente said that the design was final and he was certain that it would be an improvement over what is there currently.

Chairman Rosekrans opened the Public Hearing portion for this case. He asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak, seeing none he closed the public hearing.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any further questions, seeing none he asked for a motion.

Action: Commissioner Personett moved to approve the case as presented with the variance.   Commissioner    Evans seconded the motion.

Commissioner Dilts stated she thought would be a nice improvement to that location.

Vote: Motion passed 8-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Personett, Rosekrans, and Reinier 
No: None
Abstain: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Tuesday, May 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

VI.	19-11FP:  Final Plat   at 1132 W Kansas for 0.69 acre infill lot.

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Action: Commissioner Personett moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Holt seconded the motion.








Vote: Motion passed 8-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Personett, Rosekrans, and Reinier 
No: None
Abstain: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Tuesday, May 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

VII.	19-09FP:  Final Plat for Ella’s Crossing, 52 single family lots on 17.58 ac at 1023 Route H.

Chairman Rosekrans stated that Commissioner Holt will recuse himself due to a conflict of interest.

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Personett stated that after review he thought that one of the lots might not meet standard size requirements.

Art Aiken, engineer for the applicant stated that he would review all the lot dimensions for conformance to codes prior to the case being heard by the City Council.

Action: Commissioner Personett moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Howard seconded the motion.


Vote: Motion passed 7-0-1
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Howard, Personett, Rosekrans, and Reinier
No: None
Abstain: Holt

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Tuesday, May 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.


VIII.	19-14FDP:  Final Development Plan for a 101,000 sf expansion at the Ford KCAP Stamping Plant at 2401Plummer Rd.

Mr. Peterman presented the proposal as described in the staff report.  

Chairman Rosekrans asked the commissioners if they had any questions of staff.  

Commissioner Personett asked if this new expansion affected the parking on site.

Ms. Sharp stated that the parking in industrial projects can be evaluated on case by case basis and that the parking at this site is acceptable.

Commissioner Dilts asked if the tree discussion should be had again with this application.

Ms. Sharp stated that this is not the same discussion.  The fee being paid for trees on this site is an alternative that is allowed by code and the applicant is meeting the code. She said the variance in the last application was to allow the money for trees to be used as public art and they are not requesting that with this application. 

Tony Reinhart, Ford, 2401 Plummer Road, representing the applicant, stated that this is a new addition that was not planned for in the beginning and it will bring the total square footage of the stamping plant to nearly 1 million square feet.  He feels that the landscaping and buffering along South Liberty Parkway that was established when the plant was first built is adequate and performing as it was intended.

Action: Commissioner Personett moved to approve the case as presented.   Commissioner Dilts seconded the motion.

Vote: Motion passed 8-0-0
Yes: Boswell, Dilts, Evans, Holt, Howard, Personett, Rosekrans, and Reinier
No: None
Abstain: None

Chairman Rosekrans said this case would be heard in front of the City Council on Tuesday, May 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.
	
IX.	Public Comments
There was no public comment.

X.	Other Business
a. Ms. Sharp updated the Commission on current development projects.  
a) Hy Vee Aisles kiosk
b) Animal Shelter  (Stormwater)
c) Lion’s Choice

Commissioner Dilts asked if there would be a review of the landscaping ordinance as relates to trees.

Ms. Sharp stated that staff brought forward the concerns of the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding the use of tree funds for art to the parks staff.  Staff was informed that at this time further discussion would be postponed while the Tree Board was better strategizing the use of current funds.

Commissioner Dilts stated she was concerned with how decisions are being made in a scattered fashion in regards to the Comprehensive Plan.  She stated that in her view it was very important that the City should have a new Comprehensive Plan.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Ms. Sharp stated that she understood and that the concern will be brought forward to the City Council at the annual retreat.  

XI.	Future Meeting Schedule

The next regular session is scheduled for Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 

X.	Adjournment
Commissioner Holt moved to adjourn, Commissioner Reinier seconded. Chairman Rosekrans adjourned the meeting at 7:30 pm.
	Page 5	
